
 

 

   
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SUSSEX COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

 

MINUTES 

 

MARCH 3, 2014 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Borisuk at 4:00 p.m. The meeting is held 
in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act, NJSA 10:4-2 of 1975, as amended. 
Present were: 
 
 
 MEMBERS PRESENT: Andy Borisuk, Chairman 
  Dr. John Ford, Vice Chairman 
  Michael Francis 
  Wolfgang Gstattenbauer 
  Gene Crawford, 1st Alternate 
  Dan Flynn, 2nd Alternate 
  John Risko, Engineering Alternate  
  Rich Vohden, Freeholder Director 
  George Graham, Freeholder Member 
   
MEMBERS EXCUSED: None 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Eric Snyder, Planning Director 
  Alice Brees, Principal Planner 
  Antoinette Wasiewicz, Recording Secretary 
 
ALSO PRESENT: William Askin, Esq. for 56 Sunset Road, LLC 
  Owen Dykstra for 56 Sunset Road, LLC 
  Len Wesling for 56 Sunset Road, LLC  
  Karen Greco-Buta, for Innovative Technologies 
 
 
MINUTES 
 

A motion was made by John Ford to approve the Minutes of February 3, 2014 as 
presented. The motion was seconded by Rich Vohden. All were in favor with 
abstentions from Andy Borisuk, Michael Francis, Wolfgang Gstattenbauer and Gene 
Crawford. Motion carried. 
 
 

 



MINUTES                                                                                                   Page 2 
3/3/14 
 
 

 

 

 

SITE PLAN/SUBDIVISION REVIEW COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A motion was made by Rich Vohden to approve the Development Review Committee 
Report for February 3, 2014 as presented. The motion was seconded by John Risko 
and carried unanimously. Motion carried. 
 
APPEALS AND WAIVER REQUESTS 

 

A. RESOLUTION FOR TRUST FOR PUBLIC LAND, MINOR SUBDIVISION #26/13 
 AND #27/13, ROUTE 606, ANDOVER BOROUGH: 
 
A motion was made by John Ford to memorialize the Resolution for the Trust for 
Public Land Minor Subdivision. The motion was seconded by Dan Flynn. A vote was 
taken. Results were as follows: John Ford-Yes; Dan Flynn-Yes; Rich Vohden-Yes and 
George Graham-Yes. Motion carried. 
 
B. 56 SUNSET INN ROAD, LLC, SITE PLAN FILE #23(PSP)13, ROUTE 623, 
 LAFAYETTE TOWNSHIP: 
 
William Askin said he is the attorney for the applicant for a sight distance waiver. 
Owen Dykstra, licensed Professional Engineer, was sworn by Eric Snyder. Mr. Dykstra 
said the property on County Route 623 in Lafayette Township has a dwelling located 
in a preserved farm area. The applicant is proposing a Farm to Table Restaurant on 
this site, about one mile south of the Route 15 intersection.  
 
There was a site visit with the County staff to measure sight distances. Currently there 
are two driveways, one on each side of the facility. Owen stated that after the site 
meeting, it was determined that the southern driveway would be an “entrance-only” 
and the northern entrance, which had the better sight distance, would be the exit. 
This proposed one-way traffic flow for the site would eliminate the most dangerous 
turning movement, the left turn out of the current southerly driveway.  
 
There are a number of waivers required in order to implement this plan. For a left- 
turning vehicle coming out of the northerly exit, the required sight distance is 645’ 
and they have 400’ to the south.  Owen said that it is the best available driveway 
location to leave the site but it is substandard by the County 85th percentile standard. 
The AASHTO safe stopping sight distance for a 50 MPH design speed would be 425’.  
 
For the left turn inter-visibility for a vehicle traveling northbound on Sunset Inn Road 
making a left into this site, there is a vertical curve on the County road that limits the 
sight distance. The required sight distance is 614’ and the existing condition is 309’.  
 
Regarding minimum curb radius at the driveway, there is 15’ radius on the southerly 
side of the entrance into the site. For the right-in and right-out turns, there is a 35’ 
radius; therefore, they do not require a waiver. For sight distance, the County requires 
a 60’ x 300’ sight triangle for exiting the site. Because of the location of the dwelling, 
they can only provide a 30’ x 300’ sight triangle to the south. They are also requesting 



MINUTES                                                                                                   Page 3 
3/3/14 
 
 

 

 

 

a waiver in case they are unable to get the easement across the neighbor’s lot on the 
north side. They are making an effort to get this.  
 
The other waivers are for providing inlets at the PCs and PTs of the new driveway. 
There is a ridge line very close to the front of the property and the high point in the 
street is relatively close, so there are very small drainage areas. They’ve demonstrated 
that the water would not go out into the travel lane of the County road. 
 
Gene Crawford asked if the change in use from dwelling to restaurant was being 
reviewed by the town. Mr. Askin said it has not been submitted yet but that it will be. 
Mr. Dykstra said they did have a conceptual hearing with Lafayette Township and they 
like the idea. It does fit their zoning requirements.  
 
Andy Borisuk said the plan looks good. There are sight distance issues but it is a fairly 
open road. However, it is not known what will be there in the future. Mr. Dykstra said 
the property immediately surrounding it is in Farmland Preservation.  
 
Wolfgang Gstattenbauer asked if there was any way to mitigate the stopping distance. 
Mr. Dykstra said there is very limited ability to improve the stopping distance without 
completing re-grading the ridge. 
 
Dan Flynn asked if there could be a “Limited Sight Distance Ahead” sign on the road. 
Mr. Dykstra said they could put up an “Intersection Ahead” sign. Mr. Risko said it is 
not a road intersection and that there are no signs or traffic control devices according 
to MUTCD (Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices) that can be added to the 
County road. He also advised the Board that this is not a standard for driveways or for 
intersections. The national group AASHTO has the driveway and intersection 
standards at 645’. This site is a very substandard access point.  
 
Mr. Borisuk said when a vehicle is coming from the south, it is traveling up a hill, and 
therefore not going quite as fast. Once you come over the knoll, there is still 
considerable sight distance and it would be a little easier to stop. 
 
Len Wesling was sworn by Eric Snyder. He said he is the applicant and that he has 
been farming the area to the right of the house. He has been running combines and 
large equipment to the property. He said when you come up the hill there is a speed 
limit sign that says 35 MPH. 
 
Mr. Borisuk asked if the applicant checked with the State Ag. Development Committee 
to see if this operation is permissible on a preserved farm. Mr. Wesling said that the 
restaurant would be located in an exception area.  
 
Ms. Crawford asked if there was any opportunity for the applicant to purchase land 
from a neighbor. Mr. Wesling said he already owns the property around the project 
site.  
 
Mr. Ford asked if the 35 MPH speed limit was accurate. Mr. Risko said 35 MPH is an 
advisory sign for the curve. It is not enforceable.  



MINUTES                                                                                                   Page 4 
3/3/14 
 
 

 

 

 

Mr. Flynn asked if this will be a BYOB restaurant. Mr. Wesling said they are shying 
away from any type of liquor. It will be a breakfast and lunch restaurant featuring 
healthy food. Mr. Flynn said he asked about alcohol because it would determine the 
intensity of use on the site.  
 
Mr. Gstattenbauer asked what kind of shoulder there was on the right hand side 
coming up towards the driveway. Mr. Dykstra said there is a very limited shoulder. 
 
Ms. Crawford asked if they can create a pull-off lane in advance of the entrance. Mr. 
Dykstra said if they had to create a new lane, the project would not happen 
financially.  
 
The meeting was opened to the public. None present. The meeting was closed to the 
public. 
 
Mr. Flynn asked if they have investigated other sites for the restaurant. Mr. Dykstra 
said he was not aware of any other site being investigated. The applicant already owns 
this property. Mr. Wesling said the whole idea was to have their business at their 
residence. He plans to have pick-your-own vegetables operation and a farmstand as 
well as educational programs for kindergarteners.  
 
Michael Francis made a motion to grant all of the waivers requested. The motion was 
seconded by George Graham. A roll-call vote was taken. Results were as follows: Andy 
Borisuk-Yes; John Ford-No; Michael Francis-Yes; Wolfgang Gstattenbauer-Yes; Gene 
Crawford-Yes; Dan Flynn-Yes; John Risko-Abstain; Rich Vohden-Yes and George 
Graham-Yes. Motion carried. 
 
John Risko said on the advice of the Planning Director he should abstain from voting 
on waivers.   
 
C. INNOVATIVE TECHNOLOGIES, INC., MINOR SUBDIVISION FILE #4(CSS)12, 
 ROUTE 629, FRANKFORD TOWNSHIP: 
 
Karen Greco-Buta said she is with the firm of Dolan and Dolan and represents the 
applicant, Innovative Technologies, Inc. She turned the presentation over to Owen 
Dykstra.  
 
Owen Dykstra was sworn by Eric Snyder. Mr. Dykstra said he is here regarding a Site 
Plan for Innovative Technologies, a proposed solar farm in Frankford Township. They 
initially did a Site Plan for a solar farm for Lot 6, Block 29. Since that time, the 
applicant went into contract for Lot 10, Block 29 to purchase the rear portion and 
expand the solar farm. They are here to request a waiver for the driveway access to the 
remainder portion, which is a farm. The owner lives across the street and farms both 
sides of the property.  
 
There was a sight distance verification meeting held with County staff and it was 
determined that there is adequate sight distance to the north. To the south, the sight 
distance that was available was more limited. County standards for sight distance of 



MINUTES                                                                                                   Page 5 
3/3/14 
 
 

 

 

 

655’ were based on an 85th percentile for the street which was done about a half mile 
away on a straighter portion of the street. Andy Borisuk asked how much traffic was 
expected on and off the site. Mr. Dykstra said there was nothing proposed at the 
present time. They are just subdividing the property and they need to demonstrate 
access.  
 
Mr. Dykstra said they did a speed study and the 85th percentile in the area is no more 
than 35 MPH. The fastest car over the 6-day study was traveling 39.6 MPH. Mr. Risko 
asked if there was an account for platooning.  Mr. Dykstra said he did look at that. 
Mr. Risko explained that if you are doing 85th percentile speed, each car should be 
taken by itself. If there is one car in the lead and there are five cars behind, that 
doesn’t count as five cars, it counts as one. Mr. Risko also asked if any of the speed 
study days were rainy days or days where snow was on the sides of the roads. Mr. 
Dykstra said there was no snow on the sides of the roads. There was one rain event 
and that data was taken out of the study.  
 
Mr. Dykstra said the 40 MPH is the posted speed limit and if you use 45 MPH as your 
design speed, then required sight distance is 496’--they would have 508’ which would 
be adequate sight distance and would not require a waiver. If the 85th percentile is 
used, they will request the waiver.  
 
The meeting was opened to the public. None present. The meeting was closed to the 
public. 
 
MOTION: 

 

A motion was made by John Ford to grant the waiver for 508’ for sight distance. The 
motion was seconded by Gene Crawford. A roll-call vote was taken. Results were as 
follows: Andy Borisuk-Yes; John Ford-Yes; Michael Francis-Yes; Wolfgang 
Gstattenbauer-Yes; Gene Crawford-Yes; Dan Flynn-Yes; Rich Vohden-Yes; and George 
Graham-Yes. Motion carried.   
 
 
Andy Borisuk said Eric Snyder and Alice Brees did a wonderful job in planning and 
carrying out Donna Traylor’s Retirement Party. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
 
Eric Snyder reported that the Complete Street Study is just about done. They are 
hoping to do a presentation at the Board of Chosen Freeholders meeting on March 26. 
The Planning Board is invited to attend the meeting. It is truly a presentation; there is 
no official action suggested at this point. Hopefully, at a later time, some kind of action 
will be requested from this Board and then the Freeholders. If the Planning Board 
would like a separate presentation, that can be arranged.  
 
The Economic Study is underway. The Freeholders may appoint a Steering Committee 
at some point. This will be a seven month study. 
 



MINUTES                                                                                                   Page 6 
3/3/14 
 
 

 

 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

None 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

None  
 

OPEN TO PUBLIC 

 

None 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
All business having been completed, a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by 
John Ford. The motion was seconded by Wolfgang Gstattenbauer and carried 
unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


